
 

APRIL  2022 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PACKET

K E N T  D I S T R I C T
L I B R A R Y

1



DRAFT 

                    *        Requires Action 
**      According to Kent District Library Board of Trustee Bylaws, Article VII, Item 7.1.3, “Public comments will 
          be limited to 3 minutes per person or group and 15 minutes per subject.” 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Agenda 

 

 

 

 LOCATION 

Kent District Library Service & Meeting Center, 814 West River Center Dr NE, Comstock Park, MI, 49321 

or via teleconference  

 DATE & TIME  

Thursday, April 21, 2022, at 4:30 PM. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA* 

A. Approval of Agenda 

B. Approval of Minutes: March 17, 2022  

C. Lakeland Library Cooperative Report: March 10, 2022 

4. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS  
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS** 
 

6. FINANCE REPORTS – March 2022* 
 

7. LAKELAND LIBRARY COOPERATIVE REPORT 
 

8. DIRECTOR’S REPORT – March 2022 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

A. 1st Quarter Strategic Plan Update 
B. 1st Quarter KPI Review 
C. Diversity of the Collection Audit 

D. Policy Manual Section 3: Facilities & Operations *                    First Reading  

10. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS** 
 

12. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

13. MEETING DATES 

Next Regular Meeting: Thursday, May 19, 2022 – KDL Englehardt Branch, 4:30 PM 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT  

2



BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Minutes 

 

 LOCATION 

 DATE + TIME  

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. 

 

E. 

 

 

  

3



 

• 

• 

 

• 

 

•  

o 

o 

o 

o 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

 

 

  

 

4



 

 

 

    

    

 

  

 

5



• 

 

• 

 

• 

 

•  

•  

• 

 

 

 

 

6



1 

LAKELAND LIBRARY COOPERATIVE 
BOARD MINUTES – Unofficial 

Thursday, March 10, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. 
Kent District Library Service Center 

 
Present: Dale Parus, Maggie McKeithan, Diane Kooiker, Karen McKinnon, Shirley Bruursema, Lance 

Werner 

Absent: Peggy Hemerling, John McNaughton 

Staff Present: Carol Dawe, Sheryl VanderWagen,  

 

1) CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: The meeting was called to order at 9:31 a.m. by Dale Parus. 

There were 19 additional participants. 

2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Lance Werner moved, supported by Karen McKinnon, to approve the 

agenda as presented - motion carried. 

3) QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS: None 

4) PUBLIC COMMENTS: None 

5) APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Shirley Bruursema moved, supported by Lance Werner, to approve the 

board minutes from February 10, 2022, as presented – motion carried. 

6) FINANCIAL REPORT: 

a) February Financials and Check Register: Motion by Lance Werner, supported by Maggie 

McKeithan to approve the February financial report and check register as presented – motion 

carried. 

b) Pass-through account discussion (ARPA Grant): Carol Dawe reported that the reimbursement 
has come through for the first group of invoices.  Stand-alone and solo library purchases have 
been completed and the content groups are currently working on their selections. 

7) PRESIDENT’S REPORT: None 

8) COOPERATIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT: Carol Dawe reminded everyone to check their directory 

pages and update staff and hours as needed.  Complete the form for changes on the directory page.   

9) COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a) Advisory Council Official Minutes – January 13, 2022: included in the packet for information 

b) Membership Ad Hoc Committee Reports – Nothing to report currently.  The group will be meeting 

on Friday with Anne Seurynck. 

10)  NEW BUSINESS 

a) Strategic Planning update and discussion – to summit or not to summit: Motion by Lance Werner, 

supported by Karen McKinnon to accept the proposal for Strategic Planning from Amanda 

Standerfer for $7,200 with an in-person summit – motion carried 

11) PUBLIC COMMENTS:  

There was a round of applause for retiring IT Manager, Thom Riley in appreciation of his years of 
service to Lakeland. 

 
12) BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: 

a) Dale Parus stated that Lakeland has benefited from the increase in population with an 

additional $124,000 (amount corrected from what was stated) in state aid for this current fiscal 

year.  Other areas in the state saw declines or status quo in their numbers.  

b) Maggie McKeithan stated that Spring Lake has a Youth Services position open that is 

closing soon.  The position is full time with benefits.  She asked everyone to pass the word. 

c) Karen McKinnon reported that Leighton Township Library recently hired a new youth 

services staff member. The new staff member also has a BA degree in Social Work so they will 

benefit from her expertise. Their addition is complete, but they are still waiting for the new 

shelving to arrive. 

7



Lakeland Library Cooperative Unofficial Board Minutes for March 10, 2022 

2 

 

d) Shirley Bruursema reported that she will be doing a millage workshop on March 28 on 

ZOOM at 1:00 p.m. She reported that the MLA Advocacy Day was a success and received 

positive reviews from participants. 

e) Lance Werner encouraged everyone to vote for Kelvin Watson for ALA President. 

 

13) NEXT MEETING: Thursday, April 14, 2022, 9:30 a.m. at Kent District Library Service Center. 

14) ADJOURNMENT: Lance Werner moved, supported by Karen McKinnon to adjourn at 9:48 a.m. - 

motion carried. 

 
Respectfully submitted by, 

Sheryl VanderWagen 

8



         

                    

Monthly Cash Position Per Bank
Month ended March 31

2022 2021

Account Rate Amount Rate Amount

0.100% $7,145,529.67 0.000% $12,674,784.04

0.010% $10,848,608.90 0.010% $6,865,680.27

0.368% $55,869.04 0.618% $56,568.28

$11,645,239.00 0.000% $11,929,016.00

$29,695,246.61 $31,526,048.59

* Includes Trust Pooled fund balances

NOTE:  Totals do not include Petty Cash or Branch Cash drawer balances

Atlanta Capital Investments Atlanta Capital Investments

Account

Huntington Checking Account Huntington Checking Account

Huntington Investment Account Huntington Investment Account

*Kent County Pooled Funds *Kent County Pooled Funds

Checking Account 

40.20%

Investment Account

21.78%

Pooled Funds 

.18%

Atlanta Capital

37.84%  

Checking Account

24.06%     

Investment 

Account

36.53%
Pooled Funds

.19%

Atlanta Capital 

39.22%  

9



         

                    

Monthly Revenues and Expenditures
Month ended March 31

Budget to Actual with Prior Year Comparison Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

Revenues Account Amount

2021 Actual 2021 YTD Revenues 89.1%

2022 Actual 2022 YTD Revenues 87.6%

2022 Budgeted

2021 YTD Expenditures 23.2%

Expenditures 2022 YTD Expenditures 24.2%

2021 Actual

2022 Actual

2022 Budgeted 30,888,255$                              

24,070,460$                              

24,562,966$                              

28,055,051$                              

7,058,263$                                

7,482,650$                                

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

2021
Actual

2022
Actual

2022
Budgeted

2021
Actual

2022
Actual

2022
Budgeted

M
ill
io
ns

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2021 YTD Revenues 2022 YTD Revenues 2021 YTD Expenditures 2022 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

2021

Actual

2022

Actual

2022

Budgeted

2021

Actual

2022

Actual

2022

Budgeted

M
il

li
o

n
s

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2021 YTD Revenues 2022 YTD Revenues 2021 YTD Expenditures 2022 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



East Grand Rapids: The East Grand Rapids Branch has the highest visitor count in the KDL system. From open to

close they have a wide variety of patrons using the facility for a myriad of reasons. It allows their team to focus

on going above and beyond in patron service. One of the reasons they are so busy is the proximity to the East

Grand Rapids elementary, middle, and high schools. The youth staff actively participates in many annual events

put on by the schools nearby. Earlier this year, before programming came back, Branch Outreach and

Programming Specialist Monica Walen virtually visited all the local school classrooms she connects with to do

book talks and promote the library. Once they were able to get back to visiting in person, the Youth Librarian

Sarah Yoder participated in an all-school assembly to kick off March Book Madness. 

 

Amy Van Andel Library:  The Amy Van Andel Library may be the newest library in the system, but it is in the

center of a small, tightly knit community. The Ada Business Association is really picking up and everyone is

excited for community events to come back. Most recently, Assistant Brand Librarian Kate McCoy represented

the library during the Ada Leprechaun Hunt. This summer the library will participate in the Fourth of July

Parade, August in Ada Festival, weekly farmer’s market, and the new Story Stroll event. It is hard to believe how

interconnected the library is to the Community in such a short amount of time. Unique to the branch is also the

Podcast Studio which is used by patrons daily! 

Director's Report
As a 20 branch library system serving over 400,000 constituents across 26 municipalities, one of
the amazing things about KDL is that Kent County residents can expect a curated experience in
terms of collection, customer service, and programming and services while also honoring the
unique communities where each branch exists. What makes YOUR branch cluster unique from all
the others? 

MARCH  2022

EAST GRAND RAPIDS BRANCH + AMY VAN ANDEL LIBRARY

22



Gaines Township and the City of Kentwood are neighbors and support the sixteen schools in the

Kentwood Public School System. Besides visiting every first-grade class for the annual Leap into Reading

Program, the Gaines/Kentwood region partners with the afterschool and summer student program to

provide programming and outreach to underserved students. The Kentwood and Gaines branches are

represented on the Community School Leadership Team which meets monthly to discuss the needs of at-

risk and underserved students in the Kentwood school system. 

 

The Gaines Township Branch is located across from the Pine Rest Christian Hospital and receives regular

visits from the residents of group homes who live on and around the main campus. The permanent

residents know the Gaines staff by name and love to engage everyone in conversation while at the branch. 

 

The Kentwood Branch serves one of the most diverse communities in the state of Michigan. East

Kentwood High School reports that they have students from over 60 different countries, speaking over 70

different languages. The staff at the Kentwood Branch have developed partnerships with area agencies

serving local refugee families and host library tours for adults and families. The location of the branch is

convenient to the neighboring apartment complexes and the RAPID bus stop, so the branch has daily

visitors who spend long hours at the branch making use of the public computers and spacious public

areas to read, relax or play. 

 

After 42 years of service to KDL The Regional Manager Cheryl Cammenga will be retiring in July. She has

been an invaluable member of the Kentwood team and has certainly earned her retirement! The

Kentwood Branch, and all of KDL, are grateful for all her contributions over the years. 

 

Fun Fact: The two-story Kentwood (Richard L. Root) Branch overlooks what was formerly the Kent County

dump, which is now a Superfund site. This designation guarantees that there will be no buildings blocking

the view for as long as the library exists. The patrons who choose to sit by the picture windows on both

floors see views of wildflowers, turkeys, and deer, camouflaging the trash that lies beneath the surface.  

GAINES + KENTWOOD

23



KELLOGGSVILLE + WYOMING
Wyoming is the largest of KDL’s branch libraries and is an architectural jewel. It is a destination library and

patrons love being in this space. Wyoming is the only branch currently offering a mother’s support group,

Mama Bear & Baby Cubs, and a regular Paint and Pop program. The branch partners with the city of

Wyoming to provide unique programs such as Cookies with Cops and Touch a Truck. These programs are

intended to promote healthy relationships between city department staff and the public and foster a sense

of community. Wyoming’s Community Reads event was initiated as a way of connecting schools, libraries,

and authors to discuss deep topics and promote critical thinking. The Wyoming Branch has the only

circulating braille collection and the only adaptive technology room in KDL. 

 

Kelloggsville is one of the very few public libraries in Michigan operating within a public school. The branch is

home to KDL’s only school-embedded public librarian. The Kelloggsville Branch has a non-floating curated

collection that meets the diverse needs of the students and the community. It is one of the most culturally

diverse teen-centric collections in KDL. The Kelloggsville Branch has KDL’s only paid Teen Internship

Program open to Kelloggsville students. The branch has adapted to meet the needs of students both during

and after school, and the community during the evenings. 

24



The Nelson Branch is one of KDL’s more rural branches. The library itself even resembles a barn! Coming to the

Nelson Branch is a favorite outing for the residents of an area group home; it brings them such joy. They seem

to light up when staff greet them by name and during the one-on-one interactions at the front desk as they

checkout items and put in hold requests. For Nelson staff, it's a joy hearing about the new jobs residents have

started, upcoming visits with their families, and their holiday plans throughout the year.  

 

The Krause Memorial and Spencer branches continue to contribute to their communities by hosting popular

and unique annual community events. 

 

The Spencer Branch serves a remote, rural area, making these library events even more impactful for residents.

In the Spring, the Spencer Friends of the Library host an egg hunt for children and their families. There are

prizes for all participants, and everyone looks forward to this fun community event. 

In June, the Spencer Branch hosts its annual Summer Carnival to kick off Summer Wonder. Fun carnival

games, including a bounce house, are free to everyone! Kids can also get free balloon animals and cotton

candy.  

 

This year marks the 13th annual Reading Rocks festival in Rockford. This unique event is a partnership

between the Krause Memorial Branch and Rockford Public Schools, with involvement from Rockford Chamber

of Commerce and Rockford Rotary. A highlight of the festival is Authors' Row, which consists of over 30 local

authors who are on hand to talk to children and sign/sell their books. A featured headline author is promoted

to the schools to get students excited about the festival. Rockin' Reader awards are given to one recipient in

each classroom from kindergarten through 7th  grade of Rockford Public Schools and area private and charter

schools. The festival also includes an opening ceremony, library activity tent, face painting, street art, strolling

character costumes (including our very own Katie L, of course!) and the ever-popular Hook-A-Book tent. This

community event is designed to celebrate reading and its importance in the community. 

KRAUSE MEMORIAL, NELSON + SPENCER 

25



The Project Management Office (PMO) celebrated its first birthday in February! The dashboard and training
were released to KDL in February 2021 and wrapped up in late April 2021. It has made a tremendous and
positive impact on the organization and the PMO is ever-evolving to strengthen processes, adapt to change,
and be mindful of our existing innovative culture. 

In its first year, the Project Management Office approved and completed 32 projects, declined 23 projects,
and KDL was able to determine more accurately the ideal number of simultaneous projects to balance with
standard operations (minimum of 7, maximum of 21, which equals 1-3 per LT member at a time). This was a
vast improvement from the original tally of 165 and has helped increase focus and reduce the number of
projects that did not wrap up in a timely manner or that fell by the wayside.  

In December 2021, KDL was notified that it won the Urban Libraries Council Top Innovator Award in Strategic
Management for Project Management Office for Strategy and ROI (Return on Investment). This was the first
time KDL has won the Top Innovator Award. The entry highlighted the large organizational change that was
implemented and built during the pandemic, creating a centralized dashboard on Microsoft SharePoint, an
existing platform that most staff were already accustomed to and one that was not an additional expense.
Since the virtual award ceremony, many other libraries have reached out and expressed interest in adopting
something similar and Jaci has met with them and shared ideas. Jaci and Katie are working to develop a web
page with more information since information sharing is at the heart of the library profession. 
 
Most recently, the PMO introduced the organization to a standard close-out phase of projects. For every
project KDL wraps up, a close-out survey is sent to assess the rollout. The survey’s goal is two-fold: to capture
early feedback and improvement opportunities on the specific project, and to learn how KDL may improve on
project rollouts themselves. Simple and standard, it contains 3 questions that staff can briefly answer. 

The survey results are then compiled and linked to the Project Close Out Form. The Project Close Out Form is
reviewed after the project launch in a meeting between the PMO, project sponsor, and project lead. The form
mirrors the deliverables from the charter, and together the deliverables are revisited to make sure they are
completed — if they aren’t, closeout is either halted or the reason for not being completed is documented.
The lead and sponsor then schedule a meeting further out to review pertinent metrics and review progress to
ensure the project outcomes are going as expected. These new processes prevent projects closing
prematurely and assign project ownership after it becomes part of operations so it is well-sustained. 

Featured Department
Project Management Office

26

https://www.urbanlibraries.org/innovations/project-management-office-for-strategy-and-roi


Shown 100% completion of the Paradigm trainings for all 3 sessions and engaged in 3 meaningful
discussions. 
Begun a project for a Data Dashboard using BlueCloud Analytics to display and utilize our data in a
more meaningful way (Sheri). 
Helped streamline front desk coverage by working with IT to implement a phone solution for full
admin team assistance for front desk coverage. 
Scheduled monthly admin meetings to strengthen communication and standardize internal service
expectations (Elvia). 
Collectively received 42 Katie Kudos for living out KDL Core Values, and gave out 72 Katie Kudos,
modeling gratitude and recognition as an important part the KDL Culture (since 9/1/21 when
recognition was moved to Paycor). 

The PMO consists of Director of Project and Planning Jaci Cooper, PMO Administrative Assistant Katie
Blakeslee, Data Coordinator Sheri Glon, and Executive Assistant Elvia Myers. Katie will now be focused on
PMO-related tasks, and a new admin, Lauren Hagermman Tekelly, has been hired for the front desk and to
assist the Director of Operations. In addition to the immediate PMO-related updates, the department has
also: 

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

 

27



FINANCIAL STABLIZATION
The Career Online High School Smart Horizons certificate
track is now available starting March of 2022. It provides an
overview of the manufacturing field and describes
manufacturing management tools, supply chain concepts,
workplace team dynamics, product quality, and the basics of
electricity, hydraulic systems, and pneumatic systems. It also
discusses employment preparedness, including writing a
resume.

Keep an eye out for KDL out there! The numbers this month
resemble pre-COVID service levels. Librarians are finding and
receiving requests and event invitations. The schools are now
welcoming in-person visits. 

BOPS and library staff are busy designing and customizing
activities and materials to share with each community. 

OUTREACH 
M A R C H   2 0 2 2

PARTNERSHIP - KDL INTERNS
In partnership with the Literacy Center, Human Resources placed four
Limited English Proficiency patrons as interns for the Community
Engagement Department. They are receiving language instruction and
library services training. The goal is to follow up on the experience by
having them apply to KDL for a permanent position. They are
awesome!

VIRTUAL SERVICES 
Wimee's Words is live Tuesdays, Wednesdays and Thursdays
on social media platforms, and episodes are then edited to
be shared on PBS nationally and GVSU locally. The team is
focusing on increasing family, classroom and partner
participation this month through partnerships such as the
John Ball Park Zoo and Giovanna Garzonni. make sure to
check out the show the day before April Fool's!

BOOKMOBILE
"I just wanted to give a shout-out to our wonderful librarians from KDL
for our bus visit yesterday. It is wonderful to see our students excited
over picking out their books and having such joy in reading. For the first
time being on the bus, I thought it was very successful! Thank you for all
being prompt and flexible. The next visit is on the 16th so just in a couple
of weeks."      Thanks,  Melissa

School age 
6939

Community Event 
1930

Early Learning 
1320

Seniors
166

School age 
1109

Community Event 
758

Early Learning 
33

28



Although we suspended indoor, in-person programming in February, in true KDL fashion, our organization still
pulled off some incredible events in true KDL fashion. System-wide, 70 programs took place virtually and
outdoors with a total attendance of 7,465. Meet the Sled Dogs visited Grandville and Kentwood, which provided
a great opportunity for families to attend a fun, educational, and safe outdoor event. (pics below) The  Kent
County Teen Film Festival went virtual again this year and drew in over 1,100 views. Ethan Gough, one of this
year’s winners, said, “I am eternally grateful to everyone involved in putting the festival on. They’ve done so
much for us young filmmakers, and I treasure the memories I’ve collected over the past few years I’ve been
submitting. Winning the best Live Action Short for the 2020 ceremony is a particular highlight. I had never
received an accolade of that caliber in my life. I was never on the winning sports team, and I never excelled at
anything that wasn’t related to storytelling, so finally receiving recognition for something I was passionate
about was a very formative experience for me. It caused me to see a bit more value in myself, and my
confidence was given a much-needed boost.” Kudos to the Teen Workgroup for all the hard work that went into
pulling this impactful event off virtually. (pics below of Ethan and hosts)

As we returned to in-person programming in March, staff and patrons alike were eager to be back, with more
than 1,000 programs scheduled for Spring. Our staple programs such as Storytimes, Teen Zones, and Book
Clubs are once again bringing patrons into our branches. Let it Snow has wrapped up with increased
participation over last year. Extra prize mugs were ordered to accommodate the upsurge in completers.
 
Looking ahead, we are excited to host an in-person and virtual Write Michigan Awards Ceremony on April 16.
This year, we had 1,190 entries and 131 volunteers and judges to screen and judge the stories. Schuler
Books/Chapbook Press helped to publish this year’s anthology of winners. The Write Michigan team (
Programming Specialist Diane Cutler, Creative Services Coordinator Brad Baker, Director of Engagement Randy
Goble, Administrative Assistant Janice Greer, Programming Manager Kip Odell,  Community Engagement
Manager Sara Proano, Digital Marketing Strategist David Specht, Webmaster Remington Steed, and Marketing
Communications Specialist Katie Zuidema) did a stellar job of spearheading, publicizing, and working this
flagship KDL program.

The Programming Department, together with the BOPS and workgroups, are currently gearing up for a great
and fun-packed summer season. Presenter contracts are being signed, rooms reserved, and calendars readied
as we look forward to a full return to Summer Wonder.

 PROGRAMMING
M A R C H   2 0 2 2

29



Katie Kudos 
WINNERS FOR MARCH 2022

ALISON KUCTHA

COLLECTION DEVELOPMENT

NOMINATED BY LIZ GUARINO - KOZLOWICZ 

AUTHENTIC

BECAUSE ..."Ali recently gave a phenomenal

interview on Fox 17 about our new Kanopy

service. She advocated getting this service for our

patrons. She worked diligently with other

departments to make sure all the bases were

covered including training and marketing. Despite

being somewhat camera-shy, she took on this

interview with elegance and enthusiasm. It's

always evident that she cares greatly about access

to materials and keeping the library relevant."

CHRISTINE HEKMAN

GRANDVILLE

NOMINATED BY MOINCA WALEN

COURAGEOUS

BECAUSE..."This year, because we were (yet

agaaaiiiin) going to have to do our Film Fest virtually,

the Teen Workgroup decided that we needed to liven

up the host portion of the show and include more

back-and-forth interactions. Which, of course, meant

we needed a second person to back-and-forth with.

When big, public, kind of scary things like this come up

and there's a call for volunteers, there is always the

worry that you'll get just crickets and people

desperately looking the other way or pretending they

must take a phone call. But Christine went for it! She

was engaging, heartfelt, and did a phenomenal job

taking on a wild task without a ton of advance notice.

Nice work, Christine!!"

SCOTT SMALL 

NOMINATED BY CODY KETCHUM

POSITIVE

BECAUSE..."Scott brought in pins that him and his wife

made in support of Ukraine. This is just one of the many

ways Scott displays / brings positivity to the Cascade

branch."

30



Upcoming Meetings
+ Dates of Interest

Upcoming Meetings 

Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, May 19, 2022
4:30 PM 
KDL Engelhardt Branch

Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, June 16, 2022
4:30 PM 
KDL Service + Meeting Center

Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, July 21,  2022
4:30 PM 
KDL Service + Meeting Center

Dates of Interest
KDL Pension Meeting

May 18, 2022

1:00 PM 

KDL Service + Meeting Center

ALA Annual Conference 

June 23-28, 2022

Washington, DC 

31



NEW
!

MARCH�2022

At risk—budget, scope, timeline

NEW
!

MONTHLY�PROJECT�REPORT

Projects in approval queue

Declined

New projects approved

15
3

1
Active Approved  

Projects

On track Paused/cancelled—being redefined or stopped

Completed since 01/22

Late (At Risk)

On Time

Project Lead: Scott Ninemeier + Sheri Glon
Status: On track

Approval Date: 03.02.22
Due Date: 08.31.22

KDL's current system for tracking library metrics, known internally as the "System Data Sheet," is a
clunky and outdated Excel spreadsheet that is difficult to navigate and easily susceptible to errors. This
is a problem when metrics, such as circulation and programming numbers, are tied to funding
opportunities and State Aid. In an effort to develop more efficient and manageable ways to track and
audit this data, this project team is tasked with creating an online automated data dashboard that will
replace the existing System Data Sheet. Qualities of an acceptable replacement include being  live
(updated in real time) and easy to navigate, highly visual, and reflecting data specifically related to
established Key Performance Indicators.

Data�Dashboard�Phase�1

Project Lead: Elvia Myers
Status: On track

Approval Date: 03.02.22
Due Date: 12.31.22

At the moment, KDL's library of existing email groups is inundated with several hundred abandoned
and/or otherwise obsolete email addresses and distribution lists. As such, irrelevant addresses are
often accidentally used to communicate, which severely slows communication channels and/or puts a
halt to them altogether. For example, KentwoodCirc@kdl.org only includes several part-time staff, so if
Patron Services sends a patron question to this address, it may go unseen for days. Upon successful
completion of this project, KDL will have a clear, pared-down global list of addresses, as well as a
standardized list of  naming conventions that are intuitive for all end users.

Email�Group�Streamline�+�Update

32



NEW
!

Project Lead: Jennifer DeVault + Lulu Brown
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 03.02.22
Due Date: 11.15.22

The KDL Way is used across the Library as a framework for providing consistent and excellent customer
service to all patrons. Unfortunately, in the wake of drastic cultural change and internal restructuring, it
is apparent that not all employees may be operating from the same understanding of what defines
"excellent customer service" and how often the KDL Way is visited varies. By creating a service vision
statement and providing new guidelines for training and service expectations centered on KDL's Core
Values, the Library has the opportunity to level set expectations amongst employees and provide
standards of excellence for how to best serve patrons and empower KDL employees to go above and
beyond in every patron interaction. The ultimate goal of this project is to keep the KDL Way at the
forefront all employee-patron interactions and to continue to improve the patron service experience.

KDL�Way�Service�Vision�+�Training

Project Lead: Liz Guarino-Kozlowicz
Status: On track

Approval Date: 02.02.22
Due Date: 08.31.22

Though the project has been slow to start due to staffing changes in the department, the team has
officially scheduled their kickoff meeting for April 18 and looks forward to establishing the new
purchasing philosophy and procedures.

Circulation�Moonshot:�Collection�Purchasing�Philosophy

Project Lead: Jared Seigel + Shelby Toren
Status: At Risk - Scope

Approval Date: 06.30.21
Due Date: 05.31.22

With Jared Seigel and Shelby Toren named as new project leads, displays and merchandizing efforts are  
officially back up and running. Though furniture purchasing has been placed on hold, Jared and Shelby
have been meeting one-on-one with Branch Champions to identify opportunities for merchandising
improvement and assess the number and types of display supports needed for the space. Each branch
is at a different stage in merchandising its collection, but these in-person meetings have served to
inform the project team's strategy on how it can most effectively move forward with the project's goals.

Circulation�Moonshot:�Displays�+�Merchandising

Circulation�Moonshot:�Weeding�Standards
Project Lead: Liz Guarino-Kozlowicz
Status: On track

Approval Date: 06.30.21
Due Date: 05.31.22

 

With new procedures firmly established and Branch Champions at work with training and re-
enforcement, all branches are set to have officially deployed new weeding processes by Monday, April
18, followed by five weeks of initial statistics gathering. A detailed Communication Bulletin further
outlining these changes is scheduled for the week of April 20. 

33



Project Lead: Hennie Vaandrager
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 02.02.22
Due Date: 08.31.22

Legal Aid of Western Michigan recently received a grant that will allow them to continue this work over
the next three years, something that KDL will take into consideration as it completes initial goals and
deliverables associated with this project. The first Expungement Fair is scheduled to take place at the
Center for Community Transformation on May 7 from 9:00 AM to 3:00 PM and partner organizations
NAACP, Literacy Center of West Michigan, West Michigan Works, Hispanic Center, Heart of West
Michigan United Way, and Safe & Just Michigan will participate. There, KDL will have an information
table set up and is providing general communication and video support. Beyond this event, KDL will
continue working with LAWM to schedule "awareness events" at select KDL branches in the fall.

Expungement�Fair�with�Legal�Aid�of�Western�Michigan

Project Lead: Morgan Hanks
Status: At Risk - Timeline

Approval Date: 10.20.21
Due Date: new due date 06.15.22

The new Curbside Texting and Interactive Voice Response service has been used at Caledonia for an
entire month now. The project team has learned a lot through the pilot and has used direct feedback
from both staff and patrons alike to adjust features and request enhancements. A new due date  was
identified to collect more data and document experience before proposing a project to offer this
systemwide. 

Curbside�Texting�+�Interactive�Voice�Response�(IVR)

Project Lead: Tammy Schneider
Status: On track

Approval Date: 03.24.21
Due Date: 12.31.22

EDI�Collection�Audit�/�Tagging�(Phase�2)�

KDL's Task & Research Board continues work on tagging the Adult Non-Fiction collection. Though
originally estimated to be complete by mid-April, this may actually be pushed out to early May due to
the relatively small number of Task Board members and Spring Break. Task cards will be created based
on the Youth Collection next.

Project Lead: Tammy Schneider
Status: On track

Approval Date: 10.20.21
Due Date: 05.31.22

Title selections for both the Youth and Teen CORE Collections have been finalized and will be ordered in
early April. CORE stickers have also been requested and will be ready by the time materials come in.
The new collections will also be featured in the upcoming summer Kaleidoscope. To further celebrate
with staff and patrons alike, the project team has developed a CORE Bingo game for staff similar to the
one that was done to help staff familiarize themselves with Adult Core titles, as well as a tri-fold
brochure, wherein young eager readers may "check off" titles as they read them.
 

Circulation�Moonshot:�Youth�+�Teen�CORE�Collection

34



Project Lead: Remington Steed
Status: At Risk - Timeline

Approval Date: 11.29.21
Due Date: 04.22.22

BiblioCommons has completed building the application and provided a test version for the project
team to explore on their Apple and Android devices. The final app is expected to be ready for a soft
launch to all staff by April 21, followed by staff training. The public launch is expected on May 9.

KDL�Mobile�App

Project Lead: Tammy Schneider
Status: At Risk - Timeline

Approval Date: 01.05.22
Due Date: new due date 04.30.22

Desktop and mobile versions of the app went live as of April 1 and staff completed a raining checklist to
familiarize themselves with the new service. Library Ideas (vendor) has provided stickers for promoting
iVox, which will be affixed to all Vox Books and Wonderbooks within the collection. Project team
members Kevin Kammeraad and Sydney Khoury have also created a promotional video to be played in
the branches throughout the launch.

iVox�App

Project Lead: Hannah Moeggenborg
Status: On track

Approval Date: 01.19.22
Due Date: 04.30.22

The project team continues to make progress. For testing purposes, an initial locker was assembled and
stocked at the Service + Meeting Center in March; the team is satisfied with the style and quality of the
chosen locker, which is like a wooden cabinet that can blend seamlessly in with the décor at any
branch. Managers will first choose between a blonde or black finish, after which the lockers will be
ordered and sent to the branches for assembly and stocking.  

Hygiene�Lockers

Rehmann�-�Finance�Department�Audit
Project Lead: Kim Lindsay
Status: At Risk - Timeline

Approval Date: 11.02.20
Due Date: new due date 5.31.22

 

In March, KDL welcomed Janelle Mitchell as the new General Accountant to the Finance team. This has
also allowed the rest of the team to go back to their normally assigned duties. During the month of
March, additional recurring monthly billings from several vendors were added to the streamlined
payment and approval process. Additionally, the team continues to work on streamlining in-branch
purchasing, which will be rolled out systemwide in late April. Training on several key purchasing
processes will also take place at the next quarterly All Managers Meeting.
 

Project Lead: Missy Lancaster / Abby Black
Status: On track

Approval Date: 09.23.21
Due Date: 11.30.22

The WonderKnook project is progressing fast. All branches have had a chance to preview their custom,
imaginative and loose parts pieces and have provided feedback on the designs. A final packet of
renderings will be completed soon and will be shared with the board in May, and the the manufacturing
process will soon begin. The Early Lit Workgroup has finalized the list of all manipulatives associated
with the spaces (i.e. pots and pans, blocks, trains, magnets) and will begin purchasing items toward the
end of August. In marketing the new space, the project team is also working on an  adventure map of all
WonderKnooks at all KDL branches. With this, kids will be able to check off each space they visit and
win a special prize for completing different adventures on the map.

Systemwide�WonderKnook�Refresh

35



Project Lead: Brad Baker
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 12.29.21
Due Date: 04.30.22

Display panels are currently being stored at the Service Center and will be installed at their next
destination, the East Grand Rapids Branch, on April 15. This will be just in time for the Pam VanderPloeg
Rediscover Grand Rapids program on April 28, which was rescheduled due to the pause on all in-person
programming earlier this year. After six weeks at East Grand Rapids, the panels will again be broken
down and taken back to the Service Center for storage before the next exhibition in September.
 

Traveling�Exhibits

BUILDING�PROJECTS

Project Lead: Missy Lancaster
Status: On track

Approval Date: 2020
Due Date: new due date 05.31.22

Basic maintenance in remaining conference rooms is progressing smoothly and all lights on the Service
Center side of the building have been replaced with energy efficient LED bulbs. The sprinkler system has
been updated throughout, walls have been patched and painted and Bruursema Board Room cabinets
have been installed. Carpeting has also been installed, though countertops are still pending delivery.
Furniture was ordered at the end of March. Curtis Kieliszewski in IT is still working on getting quotes
from technology vendors.

Service�+�Meeting�Center

Project Lead: Jennifer German
Status: N/A

Approval Date: N/A
Due Date: N/A

All four northern municipalities have now signed a Memorandum of Understanding with KDL, outlining
their intention to continue in the corporate body of the KDL system and to begin fundraising for an
expansion of the Krause Memorial Branch.  While many details still need to be ironed out, municipal
officials continue to meet regularly and have contracted with Progressive AE for an initial study of the
space that will take 4-6 weeks to complete.
 

Krause�Memorial

Project Lead: Liz Knapp
Status: N/A

Approval Date: N/A
Due Date: N/A

At the Walker City Commission on Monday, March 21, city commissioners discussed options for
increasing the size of the Walker Library; namely, building a completely new library space or expanding
the current location. After discussion, commissioners elected to expand the existing space as this option
seems to be the most cost effective. Though previously discussed, upgrades to the Walker Ice and
Fitness Center will be considered separately. Additionally, space has been found for Senior Neighbors at
Fire Station 3. A Request for Proposal will soon be issued to begin the design and planning process.
  

Walker

36



    

 

 

  

• 

• 

• 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 
 

 

 

 

 

37



     

 

    

 

  

 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

38



     

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

39

https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C759607
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/item/show/603993174
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/item/show/647898174
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/item/show/746972174
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C256833
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C256833
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5328992
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3784190
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/4948153
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3784454
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3784454
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3707522
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3707522
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C438187
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C815039
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C839135
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C839135
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C762464
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C803983
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/item/show/647898174
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C256833
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C194309
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/item/show/603993174
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C741621
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C856920
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C839135
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C839135
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C645530
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C780924
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C862220
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5808556
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/7115460
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3022540
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3022540
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6197160
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6225852


  
STAFF CHANGES & ANNIVERSARIES 

April 2022 
 

 

 
 

OPEN POSITIONS TYPE 

Shelver – Wyoming (2 positions) Part-time 

Shelver – Plainfield Part-time 

Shelver – Krause Memorial Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Kentwood Part-time 

Branch Librarian – Kentwood Full-time 

Digital Marketing Strategist – Service Center Full-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – East Grand Rapids Part-time 

Shelver – Cascade Part-time 

Collection Services Assistant – Service Center Part-time 

Branch Librarian – Wyoming Full-time 

Regional Manager I – Kentwood/Gaines Township Full-time 

 

 
 
 

NEW HIRES POSITION EFFECTIVE 

Lauren Hansen Shelver – Walker March 15 

Brock Gabbert Collection Services Assistant – Service Center March 28 

Annie Albury Assistant Branch Librarian – Englehardt  April 13 

Annemarie Brenner Shelver – Gaines April 13 

Krysia DeGraf Shelver – Grandville April 13 

Katie Baumann Shelver – Kentwood April 13 

Cathy Vandermeer Shelver – Plainfield April 13 

Mikki Henry Assistant Branch Librarian – Englehardt April 13 

Sarah Thorne Shelver – Plainfield April 13 

40



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTURES POSITION EFFECTIVE 

Bethany Heerspink Assistant Branch Librarian - Walker March 26 

Shae Crampton Shelver - Cascade March 27 

Carlita Gonzalez Programming Specialist – Service Center March 28 

David Specht Digital Marketing Strategist – Service Center April 1 

Corey Archambault Volunteer Coordinator – Service Center April 13 

Erin Antes Branch Librarian - Wyoming April 15 

Anne Schroeder Assistant Branch Librarian – Krause Memorial June 2 

Lynda Austin Branch Librarian – Englehardt  June 4 

Cheryl Cammenga Regional Manager I – Kentwood/Gaines Twp. July 8 

PROMOTIONS & 
TRANSFERS 

FROM TO EFFECTIVE 

Jake Huber 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
– Kentwood  

Branch Librarian – Kentwood March 14 

Tina Cornwell Shelver – Krause Memorial 
Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Nelson Twp/Krause Memorial 

April 11 

Greg Lewis 
Branch Librarian – 
Kentwood 

Programming Specialist – 
Service Center 

April 4 

Hannah Moulds 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
– East Grand Rapids 

Programming Specialist – 
Service Center 

April 11 

Mara Deckinga 
Collection Services 
Assistant – Service Center 

Branch Librarian – Wyoming April 18 

Jennifer Bell Shelver – Plainfield  
Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Plainfield 

April 11 

Penni Zurgable 
Manager-in-Training – 
Plainfield/Comstock Park 

Regional Manager I – 
Plainfield/Comstock Park 

April 11 

Sue Olep Shelver – Wyoming  
Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Wyoming 

April 18 

Rebecca Avilla 
Assistant Branch Librarian - 
Wyoming 

Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Walker 

April 25 

Courtnei Moyses 
Branch Librarian – 
Kentwood/Gaines Twp 

Branch Outreach & 
Programming Specialist – 
Kentwood/Gaines Twp 

April 25 

41



 
 

EMPLOYEE ANNIVERSARIES 
(MAY) 

BRANCH OR DEPARTMENT LENGTH OF SERVICE 

Marisa Demoor Kentwood 21 years 

Lynn Goldberg Plainfield 16 years 

Toby Schuler East Grand Rapids 16 years 

Laurie Winkler Collection Services  16 years 

Sara Magnuson Nelson Township/Sand Lake 15 years 

Denise Wohlferd Krause Memorial 15 years 

Liz Wierenga Amy Van Andel/Ada 13 years 

Lance Werner Administration 11 years 

Eric Schweibert Comstock Park/Plainfield 10 years 

Maria Page Grandville 9 years 

Angela Culp Kentwood/Gaines Township 8 years 

Trina Den Braber Comstock Park 6 years 

Jill Essenburg Collection Services 6 years 

Bethany Metivier Nelson Township/Sand Lake 6 years 

Trish Reid Human Resources 6 years 

Curtis Kieliszewski Information Technology 5 years 

Barb DeYoung Sub Pool 4 years 

Molly Marshall Cascade 3 years 

Jenny Savage-Dura East Grand Rapids 3 years 

Lulu Brown Cascade/Caledonia 1 year 

Kate Cousins Cascade 1 year 

Will McAfee Walker 1 year 

Mabel Uhl Wyoming 
1 year 
 

  

42



2021 2022

Apr
May

Jun Jul
Aug

Sep
Oct

Nov
Dec

Jan
Feb

March

$75,000 

$50,000 

$25,000 

$0 

Donor Impact

Volunteer Impact

Total raised
$25,883.61

Total Donors
78

Funds Raised by Month

Total Gifts
174

Average Gift
$148.76

Volunteer Hours
870.75

Total Volunteers
144

Volunteer Testimonial
"Volunteering for the seed library or any other event is always fun.
You get to meet so many other volunteers that are so interesting
and have a lot of good ideas."   - Nancy M.

Large Branch
East Grand Rapids Library

Medium Branch
Krause Memorial (Rockford) Library

Small Branch
Spencer Township Library

Top Fundraisers

Corporate
Meijer, Inc.

Individual
Lucy Johnston

Top Donors

Program
Write Michigan

Adult Volunteer
Barbara Fishback (SC)

Teen Volunteer
Hannah Komejan (BYR)

Branch
Service Center

Top Volunteers

OFFICE OF

FUND DEVELOPMENT
2022 Q1

Q1

43



Q1 Successes

In the Pipeline

A monthly donor thank-you process was established, including handwritten notecards,
thank-you videos and more
The inaugural MLK Day of Service was a great success with 105 staff and board members
supporting 10 Kent County agencies with 424 hours of service
Staff at every branch received training on best practices for engaging patrons as
volunteers
When asked if they enjoyed volunteering with KDL, Q1 volunteers reported 93.3%
satisfaction, with Seed Library volunteers reporting 100% volunteer satisfaction

Save the date for the eighth annual Literary Libations Gala
on Thursday, September 15, 2022 at Frederik Meijer
Gardens
On June 16, 2022, the KDL Board of Trustees are invited
to join the Leadership Team to make thank-you calls to
recent donors as we share appreciation for their impact
and support
To advance KDL's anti-racism, equity, diversity and
inclusion commitment, we are seeking funding from the
Michigan Humanities Council to host a Native American
Dance Troupe at the Grandville and Cascade Township
Libraries
Sponsorship requests have been made for in-kind
donations from the Delta Dental Foundation to support our
KDL-wide hygiene locker project
Teen Crew volunteers will be welcomed back to our
branches beginning this summer following a two-year
pandemic hiatus

OFFICE OF

FUND DEVELOPMENT
2022 Q1

44



STRATEGIC 
PLAN

2021–2023
F I R S T  Q U A R T E R  U P D A T E
2 0 2 2

45



The Programming Department, along with the Adult Programming Workgroup,
worked to bring a variety of cultural programs to various branches for Summer
Wonder 2022 to make the popular summer program more appealing to and
inclusive of adult and family activities. Middle Eastern Dance, Native American
Dancers, The Storytellers (music and stories from around the world), and
Motherland Cultural Connection (African music) are some of the engaging and
culturally diverse offerings that will be available to patrons. Currently, KDL is
exploring a drop-in concert featuring diverse artists from the KDL Vibes artist
list to be held at the Kentwood Branch this fall. 

The original vision of this strategic initiative was to include food and drink and
to have offerings travel from branch to branch, but due to COVID concerns
early on in the year, KDL decided to prioritize safety and refrain from those two
elements. It will continue to be a priority for KDL to further EDI efforts through
programming.

Eq
ui

ty
, D

iv
er

si
ty

, I
nc

lu
si

on
 (E

DI
)

Align all library services, staffing
makeup and partnerships to be
reflective and inclusive of the 

diverse communities 
we serve.

Design and implement a travel-themed interactive program for Summer
Wonder that moves from region to region, including food, drink, reading,
music and history. The program will be highly social, will foster relationships
and will educate the community on what types of cultural diversity and ethnic
groups we have in our communities and the special traditions they celebrate.

2021–2023 Strategic Goal:

2022 Initiative #1

2022 Q1 Update
On Track Paused/Delayed Canceled Completed

46

https://www.motherlandculturalconnections.com/


Eq
ui

ty
, D

iv
er

si
ty

, I
nc

lu
si

on
 (E

DI
)

Practicing Allyship
Allyship Workshop

The Case for DEI 
Introduction in Intersectionality
What is Belonging?
What is Allyship?
How Do I Become an Ally?
Trans Allyship 101

KDL missed its goal of 88% for the third round of training by 2%. The 86% completion
rate  for the third training factored in turnover and leaves as before, and was up from
84% last quarter. The third session of Paradigm REACH training focused on Allyship:

COURSES (45-60 minutes each):

MICROLEARNINGS (2-7 minutes each):

The training also included the review of several resources/documents: Practicing
Allyship Discussion Guide for Moderators, Strategies for Practicing Allyship, Building
Effective Allyship Skills is Critical and Reading List: Allyship in Action. The document
review was identified as something that staff were missing and not clicking through
on, so Training Manager Trish Reid developed a checklist for each training and sent
out completion progress reports to managers. New to this round of training was also
a virtual manager discussion hosted by EDI Workgroup Lead Shaunna Martz. This was
conducted before the branch and department discussions so mangers felt more
prepared and so they could talk through sensitive topics or things that came up last
time to develop consistent approaches. 

KDL's fourth segment of Paradigm Reach training will kick off April 12 and will focus
on inclusive work culture.

Align all library services, staffing
makeup and partnerships to be
reflective and inclusive of the 

diverse communities 
we serve.

Continue quarterly Paradigm trainings and discussions with the expectation of
100% (88% with turnover and leaves factored in) employee engagement.

2021–2023 Strategic Goal:

2022 Initiative #2

2022 Q1 Update
On Track Paused/Delayed Canceled Completed

47



En
ga

ge
m

en
t +

 S
er

vi
ce

Increase the value delivered to the
community by focusing on 

demonstrated needs. 

A team of directors and managers met in early 2022 to finalize the charter for this
strategic initiative and define the scope and all deliverables. The existing KDL
Way toolkit was difficult to locate and it was revealed through that discussion
that it was not often revisited. Instead of revamping a staff-facing toolkit, the
team felt that a toolkit for managers to help manage service expectations would
be more impactful, and something simpler was needed for onboarding and in the
branches as an ever-present, visual reminder of the KDL Way.

The overall vision of the KDL Way will be largely unchanged: it will tie back to our
mission with the concept of going further since KDL exists to further all people.

During this discussion, the need for a mechanism to regularly discuss and revisit
elements of the KDL Way was identified. The timeline of this initiative has been
adjusted to start later to incorporate a third party tool that HR is exploring and to
align the rollout with the October 3 All Staff. 

Clarify what excellent service looks like in each role and task and create role
guides. Identify how service has been impacted by COVID-19 and how KDL can
proactively incorporate changes, and document these changes in a clear, easy
way for staff in a revision of the KDL Way Toolkit (released June/July).

2021–2023 Strategic Goal:

2022 Initiative #3

2022 Q1 Update
On Track Paused/Delayed Canceled Completed

48



En
ga

ge
m

en
t +

 S
er

vi
ce

Increase the value delivered to the
community by focusing on 

demonstrated needs. 

This initiative has not yet begun, but it is on track to begin in April. User Experience
Manager Morgan Hanks and Director of Projects and Planning Jaci Cooper will be
leading and sponsoring this initiative, respectively, and met to further document the
scope of the project. The project charter is being reviewed by managers, the team is
being finalized, and work will officially begin in the coming weeks.

Craig Buno, Regional Manager II for Walker, Tyrone, and Alpine also submitted a
project proposal to do celebratory giveaways to boost new cardholders for National
Library Card Month in September. Craig will be a part of this team and that idea will
be absorbed by this project as an added deliverable. 

Revamp new cardholder orientation/onboarding. Identify areas of patron
interest upon sign-up, train staff to promote materials of interest, give patrons
a tour, and identify and promote branch specific "member" perks to build
awareness of KDL's many services and programs and build strong
relationships.

2021–2023 Strategic Goal:

2022 Initiative #4

2022 Q1 Update
On Track Paused/Delayed Canceled Completed

49



En
ga

ge
m

en
t +

 S
er

vi
ce

Increase the value delivered to the
community by focusing on 

demonstrated needs. 

This initiative's projected timeline spanned from January through March, but after
discussion with the Early Literacy Workgroup, adjustments were made to more
realistically reflect a project of this scope. The project will now begin in May and
conclude in October. 

Community Engagement has been working on providing a clear way to meaningfully
partner with healthcare organizations and other relevant actors in this project, so
that the Early Learning Workgroup has all the necessary information to choose the
appropriate materials to include in the kits. So far, they have identified four main
healthcare systems that KDL is hoping to reach (Trinity Health Saint Mary's,
Spectrum Health, University of Michigan Health-West and Cherry Health) as well as
two advocacy and navigation non-profits (Health Net of West Michigan and Great
Start Collaborative Kent County). Manager of Community Engagement Sara Proaño
created a chart to document how these organizations are already supporting and
connecting new parents to resources so we can determine where our efforts best
align.

The Early Literacy Kits were budgeted in Outreach budget for the 2022 fiscal year,
but if this initiative is a success, Outreach will work with Fund Development to seek
grants or corporate sponsor to sustain it, and two major health organizations have
already expressed interest.

Partner with local health organizations to give early literacy kits to new
parents containing information about Kent County Success Basics,
information about KDL's physical and digital resources and programs, library
card applications, and a board book to help foster early relationships with the
library.

2021–2023 Strategic Goal:

2022 Initiative #5

2022 Q1 Update
On Track Paused/Delayed Canceled Completed

50



Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y

Not scheduled to begin until July; no updates. 

Evaluate and streamline operational,
environmental, and fundraising

processes to ensure a 
sustainable library.

Develop a process for planning and tracking relationship management with
community resource partnerships and activities that incorporates a Customer
Relationship Management (CRM) system so all departments have a better
picture of patrons' cross functional library involvement.

2021–2023 Strategic Goal:

2022 Initiative #6

2022 Q1 Update
On Track Paused/Delayed Canceled Completed

51



Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y
Not scheduled to begin until September; no updates. 

Evaluate and streamline operational,
environmental, and fundraising

processes to ensure a 
sustainable library.

Establish a library ambassador pilot program to convert library lovers into
strong advocates and develop referrals for volunteering and fund
development. This program will enhance our volunteer program and train
volunteers to reach out to their friends, local businesses and schools to help
spread awareness of KDL services and offerings. Ambassadors will be granted
first access to KDL swag, special events, etc. 

2021–2023 Strategic Goal:

2022 Initiative #7

2022 Q1 Update
On Track Paused/Delayed Canceled Completed

52



Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y
Though the project has been slow to start due to staffing changes in the department,
the team has officially scheduled their kickoff meeting for April 18 and looks forward
to establishing the new purchasing philosophy and procedures.

Evaluate and streamline operational,
environmental, and fundraising

processes to ensure a 
sustainable library.

As part of the overarching Circulation Moonshot framework, assess and refine
KDL's purchasing philosophy to mitigate waste, ensure alignment with having
a popular materials collection, and ensure patrons and staff understand what
a popular materials collection is and how to help patrons get materials from
other resources.

2021–2023 Strategic Goal:

2022 Initiative #8

2022 Q1 Update
On Track Paused/Delayed Canceled Completed

53



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
1 

 
 

 
  

 

POLICY MANUAL 
SECTION 3: FACILITIES OPEATIONS

54



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
2 

 
 

SECTION 1 
 FACILITIES + OPERATIONS. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 **Edits Edits 

 

3 

Formatted: Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: Bold

55



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
3 

 
 

KDL POLICY 3.1 

EXHIBITS 

56



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
4 

 
 

KDL POLICY 3.2 

LITERATURE DISPLAY + DISTRIBUTION 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

57



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
5 

 
 

KDL POLICY 3.3 

PUBLIC RELATIONS 

58



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
6 

 
 

KDL POLICY 3.4 

LIBRARY PROGRAMS 

 

59



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
7 

 
 

KDL POLICY 3.5 

LOST + FOUND POLICY 

60



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
8 

 
 

KDL POLICY 3.6 

BRANCH LIBRARY LOCATIONS 

 

KDL POLICY 3.6.1 

BUILDING, ENGLARGING OR RENOVATING LIBRARY BUILDINGS 

 

KDL POLICY 3.6.2 

SUPPORT FOR BUILDING PROJECTS 

 

Commented [RG1]: The Amy Van Andel Library and 
Cascade Twp Branch are four miles apart. I don't see a need 
to change the policy, but am just noting this.  

Commented [EM2R1]: @Lance Werner Thoughts?  

61

mailto:LWerner@kdl.org


 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
9 

 
 

 

KDL POLICY 3.6.3 

ACCEPTANCE OF NON-KDL TECHNOLOGY 

 

62



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
10 

 
 

KDL POLICY 3.7 

MEETING ROOM USE 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

Formatted: Font color: Red

63



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
11 

 
 

A. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

64



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
12 

 
 

7. 

B. 

1. 

2. 

3. 
 

4. 

65



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
13 

 
 

5. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

g. 

h. 

i. 

j. 

k. 
l. 

m. 
n. 
o. 

6. 

 

66



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
14 

 
 

KDL POLICY 3.8 

PLANNED CLOSINGS 

 

KDL POLICY 3.8.1 

EMERGENCY CLOSINGS 

 

 

KDL POLICY 3.8.2 

BEREAVEMENT OR FUNERAL CLOSINGS 

 

67



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
15 

 
 

KDL POLICY 3.9 

LIBRARY VEHICLES 

 State Motor Vehicle 

Records (MVRs) will be used as the source for verifying driver history. MVRs will be obtained and 

reviewed annually on an employee who will need to use the KDL owned vans and bookmobile for 

business purposes to comply with the recommendations from KDL's insurance provider. KDL will 

obtain written authorization from the employee requesting to use a company vehicle to obtain an 

MVR. Major violations on the employee record will prohibit an employee from using the KDL vehicle. 

 
 

Commented [ML3]: Library vehicles - do we want to 
include obtaining a driving record before usage? 

Commented [EM4R3]: @Brian Mortimore Thoughts?  

Commented [5R3]: I believe your language should state 
that drivers cannot text.  Not that no cell phones may be 
used in a van.  Also, regarding obtaining of a driving record: 
if there is an impact either way to our insurance we need to 
know prior to making this decision.  Please address that 
first. 

Commented [ML6R3]: State Motor Vehicle Records 
(MVRs) will be used as the source for verifying driver 
history. MVRs will be obtained and reviewed annually on an 
employee who will need to use the KDL owned vans and 
bookmobile for business purposes to comply with the 
recommendations from KDL's insurance provider. KDL will 
obtain written authorization from the employee requesting 
to use a company vehicle to obtain an MVR. Major 
violations on the employee record will prohibit an employee 
from using the KDL vehicle.  

68

mailto:BMortimore@kdl.org


 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
16 

 
 

KDL POLICY 3.10 

BUILDING SAFETY  

 

 

KDL POLICY 3.10.1 

KEYS TO BUILDINGS 

 

 

KDL POLICY 3.10.2 

LIBRARY ACCESS WHEN CLOSED 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

69


	04.2022 KDL Board Packet Cover Page 
	04.21.2022 Board of Trustee Agenda 
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Meeting Agenda


	03.17.2022 - Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT 
	Unofficial Board Minutes 3-10-22
	March Financials
	Check Register - Board Report (1)
	Void Checks
	_2022 March Director's Report
	March for April 2022 Monthly Projects Report
	March 2022 Statistical Summary
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries Apr 2022
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries
	April 2022


	2022-Q1-Fund Development Quarterly Updates
	Q1 2022 Strategic Plan Update
	KDL Policy Manual 03 Facilites Operations



